








options to the Tenants and trust you can comment before we proceed.
Let me know if any questions or if you want to meet asit isideally preferred,

Thanks,

<image001.png>

JUAN G. PEREIRA PROJECT MANAGER

305- 111 WATER STREET
VANCOUVER, BC CANADA V6B 1A7
D 604 694 8680 F 604 683 6719
RELIANCEPROPERTIES.CA

E & O E: All information contained herein is from sources we deem reliable; however, no guarantee or responsibility is assumed thereof, and it shall not
form any part of future contracts Properties are submitted subject to errors and omissions and all information should be carefully verified All
measurements quoted herein are approximate

From: Gillman, Andrea[mailto:Andrea.Gillman@vancouver.cal
Sent: Wednesday, December 11, 2019 3:00 PV

To: Juan Pereira

Cc: Jonathan Lim; Naundorf, Daniel; Lynn Luong

Subject: RE: 1188 Bidwell - meeting

Thanks Juan,

| am just heading into meetings now, but appreciate you giving some further thought
to what additional options you can provide to the tenants. Further to the 20%
discount option, as per current City policy, | want to confirm that this would be
offered in perpetuity for the duration of the tenancy, subject to increases as per the
RTA. Asyou know from our conversation on Monday, creating stable tenanciesis
critical to fulfilling the offer of right of first refusal. Can you also give us an idea of
what the current market rents are for the units being held for these folks?

Andrea

From: Juan Pereira[mailto:juanp@relianceproperties.cal
Sent: Wednesday, December 11, 2019 2:34 PV

To: Gillman, Andrea

Cc: Jonathan Lim; Naundorf, Daniel; Lynn Luong
Subject: RE: 1188 Bidwell - meeting

Importance: High

Andrea,
Just left aVM to you.

We have the figures with market rents per Tenant in current building locations to
compare with our TRP scenario.
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select. After discussions with the City of Vancouver, we will be extending this deadline until
5:00 PM on January 13, 2020. If you are unable to respond to us with your decision by 5:00
PM on January 13, 2020, we will consider you to have declined the attached offers.
Unfortunately, no further exceptions will be granted.

Please note the date in this correspondence takes precedence over those listed in the attached
letter dated December 20, 2019.

If you have further questions or concerns, please reach out to myself and Juan.

Thank you,

JONATHAN LIM PROJECT COORDINATOR

305 - 111 WATER STREET
VANCOUVER, BC CANADA V6B 1A7
D 604 616 5450 F 604 683 6719
RELIANCEPROPERTIES.CA

E. & O. E.: All information contained herein is from sources we deem reliable; however, no guarantee or responsibility
is assumed thereof, and it shall not form any part of future contracts. Properties are submitted subject to errors and
omissions and all information should be carefully verified. All measurements quoted herein are approximate.

City of Vancouver - FOI 2021-433 - Page 280 of 417



PRIVILEGED AND CONFIDENTIAL

To:

Vancouver, BC V6B 1R4
From: Juan Pereira, Project Manager, Reliance Properties Ltd.
Date: December 20, 2019

RE: RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL — TENANT RELOCATION PLAN — OPTIONS

veor [

Reliance Properties has heard your comments and concerns, and consistent with out commitment to providing you
assistance over and above our legal obligations in these difficult circumstances, we have decided to extend you two
further options, Option B and C, set out below. We will also continue to honour the original offer, Option A, below.

We have attached a calculation of costs for each option to assist you in considering your options.

Option A: 1188 Bidwell at Your previous rent amount for a two-year term (As set out in Reliance’s City-Approved TRP)

Eligible tenants can move back into an equivalent/similar unit in the New Building (1188 Bidwell Street), upon
completion, for the same rent amount they were paying prior to the project (subject to increases as per the RTA) during a
two (2) year term. This option requires signing a new lease at market rent with a monthly credit for 24 months.

Option B: 1188 Bidwell at 20% Discount

Reliance has decided to extend eligible tenants the opportunity to move into 1188 Bidwell at market rent less 20%, which
is consistent to the newly updated TRP standards. While these new standards do not apply to this 1188 Bidwell TRP, we
want to extend this option to you. This rent amount will continue for the duration of the Tenancy to the eligible tenant,
subject to increases as per RTA. These benefits are exclusively for the eligible tenant, and this offer is conditional on the
acknowledgment that subletting will not be permitted.

Option C: Remain at current relocated suites provided/owned by Reliance Properties, sign a new lease at market rent
with monthly credit for 24 months

Reliance offers eligible tenants living in relocated suites a further two years in the suite at their current rent plus
allowable rent increases pursuant to the RTA, which is an extension of these benefits by 24 months. This option requires
signing a new lease at market rent with a monthly credit for 24 months.

Please provide your decision as to which of the above options you select by 5:00 pm on January 6, 2020, at which time
the offers will expire. You are also free to decline Reliance's offers, which will end Reliance's obligations with respect to
your future accommodation. If you do not respond to us with your decision by 5:00 pm on January 6, 2020, we will
consider you to have declined these offers. Please note that staying at current relocated suites at discounted rent in
perpetuity is not an option available to tenants pursuant to your agreements with Reliance and Reliance’s City of
Vancouver-approved TRP.
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If you would like to further discuss any of the above options before January 6, 2020, please direct your questions to Juan
Pereira, Project Manager, at juanp@relianceproperties.ca or 604.694.8680.

Thank you,

Juan Pereira
Reliance Properties Ltd.

Enclosed: Calculation of costs by Option; Option A&B-—1188 Bidwell layout

We hereby acknowledge receipt of this letter and sign and date and return a copy of this to the Owner/Developer’s office
(2 copies attached — 1 copy is for your records):
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the timeline in which you must reach and provide your decision as to which of the options you
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

305 -111 WATER STREET
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
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From: "Gillman, Andrea" <Andrea.Gillman@yvancouver.ca>
To: "Naundorf, Daniel" <daniel.naundorf@vancouver.ca>
CC: "Singh, Sandra" <sandra.singh@vancouver.ca>
Date: 2/10/2020 3:59:46 PM
Subject: Fwd: Davie and Bidwell
Attachments: report-dpb-1188-bidwell-DE419087.pdf
ATTO00001.htm

Hi Daniel,

Just want to make sure in terms of timing, we are all on the same page w/r/t Bidwell.
See Sandra’s note below, the minimum 20% was included in the DP report but the
discounted rent for 2 year term was done via the Housing Agreement. Was the
promise of the deeper discount discussed at DP Board?

Thanks!

Andrea

Sent from my iPhone
Begin forwarded message:
From: "Singh, Sandra" <Sandra.Singh@vancouver.ca>

To: "Gillman, Andrea" <Andrea.Gillman@vancouver.ca>
Subject: FW: Davie and Bidwell

Can you pls review and confirm.

What is outlined in 1.5 was the minimum guidelines of the 2015 TRP Policy, but a
Housing Agreement with other provisions was negotiated in place of the basic
requirements.

Sandra

From: Jon Stovell [mailto:jons@relianceproperties.cal
Sent: Monday, February 10, 2020 2:13 PM

To: Johnston, Sadhu; Singh, Sandra

Subject: Davie and Bidwell

Hi Sandra / Sadhu

See section 1.5 of the DP staff report.
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We subsequently did better through the legal agreement. Offering the relocate
discount and 2 year return discount.

But this demonstrates what the expectation of the decision makers was.
Kind regards.

Jon Stovell

https://vancouver.ca/files/cov/committees/report-dpb-1188-bidwell-DE419087 .pdf
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CITY OF VANCOUVER DEVELOPMENT PERMIT STAFF COMMITTEE REPORT
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT SERVICES AUGUST 12, 2015

FOR THE DEVELOPMENT PERMIT BOARD
SEPTEMBER 8, 2015

1188 BIDWELL STREET (COMPLETE APPLICATION)

DE419087 - ZONE C5-A SDB/JMB/WL/LM
DEVELOPMENT PERMIT STAFF COMMITTEE MEMBERS

Present: Also Present:

J. Greer (Chair), Development Services S. Black, Urban Design & Development Planning
M. Holm, Engineering Services J. Bosnjak, Development Services

D. Naundorf, Housing Policy and Projects W. LeBreton, Development Services

M. Roddis, Park Board

APPLICANT: PROPERTY OWNER:

Reliance Properties Ltd Reliance Properties Ltd

Attention: Jon Stovell Attention: Jon Stovell

305-111 Water Street 305-111 Water Street

Vancouver, BC Vancouver, BC

V6B 1A7 V6B 1A7

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

e Proposal: To develop the site with a 22-storey mixed use building comprised of 108 secured market
rental dwelling units (2nd to 22 floors), and three retail units on the first floor, all over 4 levels of
underground parking, accessed off the lane; and also requesting an increase in the Floor Space Ratio
using a Heritage Density Transfer from donor sites at 53 West Hastings Street and 55 Water Street
(providing 5,236 sq ft).

See Appendix A Standard Conditions
Appendix B Standard Notes and Conditions of Development Permit
Appendix C Plans and Elevations, and Design Rationale
Appendix D Shadow Diagrams & View Impact Studies

e Issues:
1. Building Height
2. View and Light Impacts
3. Tenant Relocation
4. Heritage Density Transfer

e Urban Design Panel: Support
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1188 BIDWELL STREET (Complete Application) AUGUST 12, 2015
DE419087 - Zone C5-A SDB/JMB/WL/LM

DEVELOPMENT PERMIT STAFF COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: APPROVE

THAT the Board APPROVE Development Application No. DE419087 submitted, the plans and information
forming a part thereof, thereby permitting the development of a 22-storey mixed use building
comprised of 108 secured market rental dwelling units (2nd to 22nd floors), and three retail units on
the first floor, all over 4 levels of underground parking, accessed off the lane; and also requesting an
increase in the Floor Space Ratio using a Heritage Density Transfer from donor sites at 53 West Hastings
Street and 55 Water Street (providing 5,236 sq ft), subject to the following conditions:

1.0 Prior to the issuance of the development permit, revised drawings and information shall be
submitted to the satisfaction of the Director of Planning, clearly indicating:

1.1 compliance with Section 4.3.2 - Height regulation in the C-5A District Schedule;

Note to Applicant: A reduction of 6.1 feet is required to meet the maximum height
permitted in this area.

1.2 design development to reduce the extent of decorative elements that affect views and
natural light in the area;

Note to Applicant: Intent is to reduce the effect of the building on sunlight, daylight,
and private or public views created by exterior fins, projections, and similar elements.
See also Condition 1.12, which is related.

1.3 design development to the commercial facade in response to the C-5A District
Schedule;

Note to Applicant: Intent is to reflect the small-scale pattern of West End shops and
add pedestrian interest. Section 4.2.1 requires that occupancies at grade be limited to
no more than 25.3 ft. wide and Section 4.17.1 recommends specific measures to
facilitate pedestrian interest. While staff accept the proposed retail dimensions inside
the building in the interest of accommodating a wide range of tenants, the exterior
expression on Davie Street should be adjusted. This can be accomplished by dividing
the exterior treatment of the commercial frontage into 25 ft. increments using more
substantial columns, recessed entryways, and pavement banding within the setback.
See also Standard Condition A.1.1.

1.4 consideration to improving the visual prominence of the residential building entry
within the streetscape;

Note to Applicant: This can accomplished by more distinctive and notable canopy and
doorway compared to the commercial weather protection.

1.5 arrangements to the satisfaction of the Chief Housing Officer and the Director of Legal
Services to enter into a Housing Agreement and/or section 219 Covenant securing all
108 residential units as rental housing for 60 years or the life of the building, whichever
is greater and subject to the following additional conditions in respect of those units:

i. That such units may not be subdivided by deposit of a strata plan;
ii. That none of such units may be separately sold;
iii. That none of such units will be rented for less than one month at a time;
iv. That at initial occupancy, returning Eligible Tenants will be entitled to rent with
a discount of 20% off starting rents
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1188 BIDWELL STREET (Complete Application) AUGUST 12, 2015
DE419087 - Zone C5-A SDB/JMB/WL/LM

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

V. That discounted Starting Rents are applicable only to Eligible Tenants who
exercise their right of first refusal and occupy a unit in the new development.

On other such terms and conditions as the Managing Director of Social Development and
the Director of Legal Services may in their sole discretion require;

Note to Applicant: This condition will be secured by a Housing Agreement to be
entered into by the City by by-law enactment pursuant to section 565.2 of the
Vancouver Charter and/or a Section 219 Covenant.

As per Section 10.12.2 of the Zoning and Development Bylaw pertaining to
developments resulting in the demolition of existing residential rental accommodation,
the development permit is not issuable until all building permits for the new
development and a building permit for the demolition are issuable. Please do not issue
any Notices to End Tenancies until all permits described above are issuable.

provision of a Tenant Relocation Plan which includes two months free rent;
reimbursement of receipted moving expenses; and the right of first refusal to move
back into the development upon completion as per Section 2 of the Rate of Change
Guidelines.

Note to Applicant: This Plan should also outline ways in which you can provide
assistance to tenants in finding alternate accommodation. A final Tenant Relocation
Plan to the satisfaction of the Chief Housing Officer must be submitted prior to permit
issuance.

provision of a notarized declaration which demonstrates that each tenant has been
given written notice of the intent to redevelop the property; that indicates the number
of units occupied on the date of the notice; includes information on posting of notice
regarding the intent to redevelop as per Section 3 of the Rate of Change Guidelines;
and includes copies of a letter addressed to each tenant summarizing the Tenant
Relocation Plan offer and signed as received by each tenant.

Note to Applicant: As noted in Section 8.1.11 of the West End Community Plan, a
relocation plan is required in all cases where tenants will be displaced by demolitions.

provision of a final Tenant Relocation Report which outlines the names of tenants;
indicates the outcome of their search for alternate accommodation; summarizes the
total monetary value given to each tenant (moving costs, rent, any other
compensation); and includes a summary of all communication provided to the tenants
prior to issuance of occupancy permit, with an interim Relocation Report prior to
issuance of Building Permit.

provision of a continuous and more generous weather protection along the Davie Street
frontage;

Note to Applicant: Canopy should extend horizontally from ground floor wall for a
distance that is at least 70% of the canopy’s height above the sidewalk. For example, a
canopy that is 10 ft. above grade should provide 7 ft. of cover from the elements.

design development to the northwest corner of the building to create a greener and
more open transition from the commercial area into the residential neighbourhood;
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1188 BIDWELL STREET (Complete Application) AUGUST 12, 2015
DE419087 - Zone C5-A SDB/JMB/WL/LM

2.0

3.0

Note to Applicant: This can be accomplished by relocating the service functions,
mechanical ducts and exit stair box away from Bidwell Street; providing views through
the amenity room with more glazing; and continuing the setback, planters and pavers
from the building entry to the lane.

design development to relocate some family sized units (2 or 3 bedroom) to overlook
the children’s play area;

Note to Applicant: Intent is to better meet the High Density Housing Guidelines for
Families with Children. This can be accomplished by exchanging the one-bedroom unit
currently on the southeast corner with the two-bedroom unit on the southwest corner.

consideration to improve the sustainable design of the building envelope;

Note to Applicant: Intent is to reduce the energy required to heat and cool this
building. This may be accomplished through the use of solar shading, triple glazing and
the avoidance of thermal bridging at window frames and projecting concrete structures
such as fins and balconies. Consider the use of thermally broken door and window
frame, and either insulating the concrete projections or installing thermal breaks

That the conditions set out in Appendix A be met prior to the issuance of the Development

Permit.

That the Notes to Applicant and Conditions of the Development Permit set out in
Appendix B be approved by the Board.
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1188 BIDWELL STREET (Complete Application)

AUGUST 12, 2015

DE419087 - Zone C5-A SDB/JMB/WL/LM
e Technical Analysis:
PERMITTED (MAXIMUM) | MINIMUM PROPOSED
Site Size' 99.01 ft. x 130.99 ft.
Site Area’ 12,970 sq.ft.
Height? 209.97 ft. Top of Elevator/Stair/Mech. 218.31 ft.
(Discretion by DPB) Top of Parapet 216.06 ft.
60 ft.
(Outright)
Floor Area’ 99,869 sq. ft. Commercial 5,030 sq.ft.
(H.D.T.) Dwelling Units 90,996 sq.ft.
90,790 sq. ft. Total 96,026 sq.ft.
(Section 5.2)
28,534 sq. ft.
(Outright)
FSR3 7.70 - H.D.T. Commerical 0.39
7.00 - Section 5.1 Dwelling Units 7.01
2.20 - Outright Total 7.40
Balconies 11,523 sq.ft. 11,564 sq.ft.
Amenity 10,764 sq.ft. 2,436 sq.ft.
Rear Yard 14.94 ft. (Residential) 16.00 ft.
Frontage* 25.3 ft. Approx. 45.00 ft.
External specific design | - see table on pages 9 and 10;
Design® features as described in
this regulation;
Parking® Commercial 4 Space | Commercial 3 Spaces | Commercial
Disability 0 Spaces Standard 11
SmallCar 5
Disability 3
Total 19
(6 of Commercial Parking spaces are for
Residential 605 Visitors - Residential)
Diesibﬁ?t;a 4 SE?EZE Residential Stalls Incl. Bonus
Standard 30 30
Small Car 12 12
Disability 4 8
Car Share 1 5
Total 47 55
Loading 2 Class B 2 Class B
Bicycle ClassA Class B Class A Class B
Parking’ Total 135 6 Total 127 6
Use - Retail Store
- Dwelling Units in Conjunction
5
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1188 BIDWELL STREET (Complete Application) AUGUST 12, 2015

DE419087 - Zone C5-A SDB/JMB/WL/LM
Unit Type Secured Market Rental Housing Units:
Studio 22
One Bed 59
Two Bed 23
Three Bed 4
Total: 108

! Note of Site Size and Site Area: The proposed site size and site area is based on the properties being
consolidated. See Standard Condition A.2.1.

2 Note on Height: The height of the building is above the maximum permitted in the C-5A District
Schedule. Section 4.3.2 of the C-5A District Schedule allows the Development Permit Board to relax
the regulation in Section 4.3.1. The Top of the parapet is considered to be the overall height of the
building. The proposed height does not comply with the maximum permitted and Condition 1.1 seeks
compliance (a reduction of 6.1 ft.). Section 10 exclusion of height does not apply to this proposal.
There is no encroachment into View Cone 20.

> Note on Floor Area and FSR: Section 5.2 of the C-5A District Schedule allows the Development
Permit Board to relax the regulation in Section 4.7 allowing a greater Floor Area/FSR as long as (a)
floor area is no greater than 7.0 FSR and (c) either a minimum of 20% of floor area is used for social
housing or all dwelling units are secured market rental. The proposal does comply with Section 5.2 (a)
and (c). Under Section 4.7.5 of the C-5A District Schedule, an additional 10 percent heritage density
transfer [H.D.T] (maximum 7.7 FSR or 99,869.0 sq. ft.) may be considered by the DP Board.

* Note on Frontage: The maximum frontage exceeds the maximum permitted in the C-5A district
schedule, of the Zoning and Development Bylaw, which the Development Permit Board does not have
authority to relax. The Director of Planning supports the frontage as proposed. See condition 1.3 and
standard condition A.1.1.

> Note on External Design: See External Design Table on Page 9;

¢ Note on Parking: Standard Condition A.1.3 seeks compliance with Section 4.3.1 - Non-residential
uses - Downtown and Section 4.3.6 - Residential uses - Downtown of the Parking By-Law.

7 Note on Bicycle Parking: Standard Condition A.1.4 seeks compliance with Section 6 of the Parking
By-Law;
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1188 BIDWELL STREET (Complete Application) AUGUST 12, 2015

DE419087 - Zone C5-A SDB/JMB/WL/LM
e Legal Description e History of Application:
Lot: 22 & W1/2 of Lot 23 05-05-15 Complete DE submitted
Block: 61 07-15-15 Urban Design Panel
District Lot: 185 08-12-15 Development Permit Staff Committee
Plan: 92

e Site: The site is located at the northeast corner of Davie and Bidwell Streets, and is comprised of
two lots totaling 99 ft. of frontage on Davie Street, extending 131 ft. north to the commercial lane.
The site contains a one-storey commercial building and a two-storey mixed use building fronting
onto Davie Street, and a three-storey apartment building on Bidwell Street.

e Context: Significant adjacent development includes:

(a) 1641 Davie Street: Safeway - 1 storey retail building

(b) 1221 Bidwell Street - 22 residential building with retail

(c) 1616 Pendrell Street - two 19 storey residential buildings

(d) 1100 Bidwell Street: Lord Roberts Elementary - 3 storey school building
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1188 BIDWELL STREET (Complete Application) AUGUST 12, 2015
DE419087 - Zone C5-A SDB/JMB/WL/LM

e Background:

A development application was submitted on May 7th, 2015 following pre-application discussions with
staff on potential forms of development on this small site under the provisions of the West End
Community Plan and C-5A zoning. A public Open House was held on June 29th, 2015. The proposal was
reviewed by the Urban Design Panel on July 15th, 2015 at which time it was supported.

The application is generally in line with the West End Community Plan, and all the residential units will
be secured as market rentals.

e Applicable By-laws and Guidelines:
West End Community Plan

The West End Community Plan provides a framework to guide positive change, development and public
benefits in the West End. The Plan identifies the need for an increase in the supply of affordable
housing for all household types, and has policy to achieve a variety of housing choices and community
facilities to attract and retain a vibrant workforce, including families with children. The Plan provides
for new rental housing opportunities through additional density and rezoning applications in the areas
noted as Corridors. The plan notes that Corridors are generally the newer areas of the community well-
served by transit, services and amenities, where the majority of new housing and job space has been
built over the past 40 years and which also provide additional opportunities to accommodate job space
and housing that meet the needs of the community. For market housing the Plan requires that 25% of
units in new multi-family developments have two and three bedroom units for families designed in
accordance with the High Density Housing for Families with Children Guidelines, which should be
located on the lower floors.

The Lower Davie Corridor extends between Denman Village and Davie Village and consists of two sub-
areas. Area A, in which the application is located, runs between Denman and Cardero Streets and
comprises two blocks of mixed use and commercial buildings. The permitted heights and densities in
this area are described in the C-5A zoning. A set back of 7 ft. from Davie Street to improve pedestrian
sidewalk space is also noted the Plan.

The West End Community Plan seeks to manage change within the rental stock and notes that in all
cases where tenants will be displaced as a result of demolitions or renovations a tenant relocation plan
as outlined in the City’s Rate of Change Guidelines will be required.

C-5, C-5A and C-6 Districts Schedule (West End Commercial Districts)

The intent of this Schedule is to provide for retail and services uses and forms of development
compatible with the primarily residential character of the West End and to provide for dwelling units in
C-5A designed to be compatible with commercial uses. This schedule encourages external building
design, the scale and function of which is oriented towards pedestrians. The C-5A district differs from
the others in this schedule in that it provides density bonuses for social housing or secured market
rental housing, unlike C-5; and has a lower density and scale than the C-6 district.

The Schedule supports the development of rental housing through Section 5.2, which allows the
Development Permit Board to relax the floor space ratio (FSR) regulation in Section 4.7 up to 7.0 FSR
for a project in which all dwelling units are secured as rental. Under Section 4.7.5 of the C-5A District
Schedule, an additional 10 percent heritage density transfer may be also be considered by the Board,
up to a total FSR of 7.7 or 99,869.0 sq. ft.
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1188 BIDWELL STREET (Complete Application) AUGUST 12, 2015
DE419087 - Zone C5-A SDB/JMB/WL/LM

Section 4.3.2 of the C-5A District Schedule allows the Development Permit Board to relax the
permitted height regulation in Section 4.3.1. to a maximum of 64 m (210 ft.).

Section 4.2.1 limits the frontage of any individual occupancy at grade to be no more than 25.3 ft. An
evaluation of the regulations on external design, Section 4.17, is provided under the Response to
Applicable By-laws and Guidelines section that follows.

High Density Housing Guidelines for Families with Children

The intent of the guidelines is to address the key issues of site, building and unit design which relate to
residential livability for families with children. Although quantitative standards are given in some
cases, these are provided to assist applicants in their design as well as City staff in their evaluation.

e Response to Applicable By-laws and Guidelines:

West End Community Plan

The application helps to fulfill a number of goals under the West End Community Plan, especially the
delivery of new rental housing.

Density

The proposed increased density of 7.4 FSR is within the approvable ratio of 7.7 FSR that is intended to
achieve rental housing on this site and to support heritage preservation on other sites. The application
proposes that 27 of the 108 dwelling units are two bedrooms or more, which meets the requirement
that 25% of the units have two and three bedrooms, which is suitable for families with children.

Tower and Podium Heights

The proposed 1-storey commercial podium height is acceptable under the West End Plan, which sets a
maximum of 3 storeys. The height to the top of the proposed tower, which includes an amenity room
that cannot be excluded from height calculations, exceeds the maximum height of 210 ft. that is noted
in the West End Plan and in the C-5A regulations. Given the intent of the Plan to maintain established
heights in this area of the West End and concerns expressed by residents, staff recommend reducing
the building height to meet the zoning for this area (See Condition 1.1).

C-5, C-5A and C-6 Districts Schedule (West End Commercial Districts)

The application generally meets the intents and regulations of the C-5A zoning, except for height and
the two areas noted below.

Frontage

The proposed commercial space occupied most of the 99 ft. wide frontage facing Davie Street, which
exceeds the regulation. In the absence of an applicable relaxation provision in the zoning, the
applicant may choose to appeal this requirement. Staff feel that the urban design intent of the
regulation can be addressed by adjusting the exterior design slightly (see Condition 1.3).

External Design

4.17.1 All developments shall provide along all Generally met. Some design development is
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abutting streets any one or a combination of recommended in Conditions 1.4 and 1.3.
display windows, individualized tenancy unit
design, building articulation, pedestrian entrance
definition via a recess or projecting canopy or any
other architectural features which facilitate
pedestrian interest to the satisfaction of the
Director of Planning.

4.17.2 The first storey shall be built to the front This regulation is met, except where the West End
and side property lines except as noted in sections Plan recommends a 7 ft. setback from Davie Street
4.4.1 and 4.5.1 while the remaining storeys may to provide more pedestrian space as permitted in
terrace back from the property lines. section 4.4.1.

4.17.3 Direct pedestrian access at the fronting This has been provided to the two CRUs abutting
street at or near grade level to each individual Davie Street via two doors onto Davie. An
commercial occupancy which abuts the fronting additional door is provided onto Bidwell for the
street of a development site shall be provided. corner CRU.

4.17.4 Continuous weather protection having a A canopy meeting the minimum depth has been
minimum depth of 1.5 m in the form of a provided. Staff recommend providing a more
retractable fabric awning, a canopy attached to generous dimension given the height of the

the building face by bolts to facilitate easy proposed canopy above grade and the volume of

removal, or other forms satisfactory to the Director | pedestrian traffic in this area (see Condition 1.4).
of Planning and City Engineer shall be provided
along the fronting street and flanking street where
the adjoining site on the flanking street isina C
district.

4.17.5 That portion of building located at the The adjoining site on the flanking street is an R
intersection of a fronting and flanking street where | district, and the regulation does not apply.

the adjoining site on the flanking street isina C
district shall be rounded with a minimum radius of
1.8 m, indented or truncated with minimum
dimensions of 1.8 m by 1.8 m, or architecturally
treated by other means to facilitate pedestrian
amenity to the satisfaction of the Director of

Planning.
4.17.6 Building corners at the intersection of a The adjoining site on the flanking street is an R
fronting and flanking street where the adjoining district, and the regulation does not apply.

site on the flanking street is in a C district shall be
accentuated by variances of height, cupolas,
domes, or other architectural appurtenances, or
any proposals varying from the above, satisfactory
to the Director of Planning.

4.17.7 A minimum of one pedestrian entrance to The adjoining site on the flanking street is an R
commercial uses shall be provided from the district, and the regulation does not apply.
flanking street where the adjoining site on the
flanking street is in a C district.

4.17.8 All garbage container storage areas shall be Commercial garbage is inside a room; residential
screened from view from nearby sidewalks and garbage is below grade.
dwelling units.

4.17.9 Mechanical equipment shall be enclosed and | Standard condition A.1.7 addresses this item.
set back so as not to be visible from street level or
architecturally treated by other means satisfactory
to the Director of Planning. Exposed duct work is
not permitted.

4.17.10 Dwelling uses shall provide: Dwelling entries and bicycle storage have been
(a) pedestrian access separate from access to other | addressed.
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uses;
(b) a minimum of one bicycle rack per four
dwelling units in an enclosed storage room.

High Density Housing Guidelines for Families with Children

The application includes private open spaces for family units, as well as co-located internal and
external amenity spaces for common access in fulfillment of the Guidelines. Relocation of some family
units to overlook the common play space is recommended (see Condition 1.11).

e Conclusion:

This application has generally addressed the applicable policies, and will increase the stock of rental
housing in the West End within a form of development anticipated by the new community plan. Staff
support the application, subject to the conditions noted.

URBAN DESIGN PANEL

The Urban Design Panel reviewed this application on July 15, 2015, and provided the following
comments:

EVALUATION: SUPPORT (9-0)
e Introduction:

Colin King, Development Planner, introduced the proposal for a new mixed-use building under the
provisions of the C-5A zoning and the West End Plan on the Davie Corridor. Since this is a complete
development permit application there are specific staff questions but any comments on more fine
grained design elements including materials and detailing are welcomed.

The site currently hosts a one-storey commercial building at the corner, and a two-storey mixed use
building, both facing Davie. Around the corner also on the site is a three-storey apartment with its
entrance on Bidwell. To the north is Pendrell Place, with Lord Roberts Elementary beyond. Existing
development along the north side of Davie is generally low scale, offering water views from viewpoints
up the hill to the east. On the other side of Davie is a four-storey mixed use building with TD Trust at
the corner. Diagonally across the intersection is the recent Alexandra tower developed after rezoning,
which includes a JJ Bean coffee shop in the restored facade of the heritage Maxine’s building at 1209
Bidwell. This corner has an outdoor patio for JJ Bean.

Davie St is identified in the plan as a “Corridor” which is generally where the Plan aims to provide job
space and meet the housing needs of the community, while allowing minimum disruption to the
neighbourhoods. The West End Plan established the potential for up to 7.0 FSR for new buildings
providing secured market rental units. Policy intents coming out of the Plan for the Lower Davie
corridor include increased densities to help deepen housing affordability while maintaining existing
height limits. Residential floor plates should be set back above the podium and should not exceed
5,500 sf. to maximize views and sunlight on sidewalks. Building materials should include a variety of
materials, rather than consist primarily of glass facade, and reflect the architectural character of
surrounding buildings. This is particularly important for the lower podium floors, Sculpt built form to
maximize sunlight on the sidewalks and minimize private view impacts.
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Broader built form guidelines coming out of the Plan include ensuring that new development does not
adversely impact shadowing on recognized public open space and Village areas as a performance
measure to ensure that these spaces have solar access when citizens are typically more active. New
development should be responsive to adjacent and nearby private views by shaping built form to
optimize performance.

The C-5A district schedule allows for 7.0 FSR; density may be increased 10% by the Development Permit
Board through transfer of heritage density. The DP Board may also increase height 60 ft. to a maximum
of 210 ft.

The Proposed Development includes a 22-storey residential tower with commercial space at grade with
an FSR of 7.4, or 95,756 square feet. It also includes retail podium with continuous commercial ceiling
heights of 16.5ft fronting Davie Street, and turning the corner to provide a double height residential
access lobby on Bidwell Street.

Materials move from the more glazed residential frontage to substantially solid expression at the
residential entry, which seems appropriate and in line with the guidance. Coming onto the lane we
have loading, car-share and disability, and parking access with a projection at the lane edge housing
stair and gas meters screening this.

High rise portion of tower is set back 40 ft. from the interior property line, to accommodate similar
development on the adjacent site and achieve the 80ft separation between towers required. Achieving
the 80ft separation from the tower at Pendrell and Bidwell derives the tower location. Floor plates are
typically 4,396 sq. ft. which is narrower than guidance allows. There is also additional area below 60ft
giving floor space between the tower and the podium.

A Residential Provision states that the building include 100% secured market residential of 108 units.
25% of units are two bedrooms or better to accommodate more families staying in the West End, and
units typically have around a 9ft ceiling height. Three outdoor common spaces for residents are
provided at levels 3, 7, and 22.

Advice from the Panel on this application is sought on the following:

1. Can the Panel comment on the proposed element extending above 210 ft.?

2. s the built form sculpted to maximize sunlight on the sidewalks?

3. Looking at all three pedestrian edges (lane, Bidwell, and Davie), would any specific elements
benefit from further development?

4. Does the detailing of the building reflect the architectural character of surrounding buildings?

5. Does the Panel have any advice on the approach to sustainable design?

e Applicant’s Introductory Comments:
The applicant team declined to give a presentation but took questions from the board and panel.
o Panel’s Consensus on Key Aspects Needing Improvement:

Explore creating porosity and activation at the corner of the lane

Have the landscape extend around the corner to the lane to allow for lane activation

Design development of the top piece to add to the skyline

The solar shade seems tacked on and should be redesigned

The entry should be more prominent

The driveway could be a drop-off location, and could make the laneway more connected to the
building

= Suite-by-suite HRV and thermal balconies should be considered.
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¢ Related Commentary:

The panel commended the applicant on their application package, and agreed that the proposal is
strong and has produced a very handsome building which embodies West-End characteristics. The
height, massing and density are all supportable, but the applicants should consider relocating the stair
on the corner of the lane as the pop-out in massing seems to be a bit foreign in that location. Suite-by-
suite HRVs would increase space in the units and be more sustainable. Triple glazing, insulate
balconies, or thermal glaze would also be great. Overall the panel appreciates the attention to detail
embodied in the project. With its interesting character and reflection of the neighbourhood, the
building is both unique and fits in well with its surroundings.

The street edges seem to be well-handled with tapered posts and plated sidewalks. Sunlight on the
sidewalks also seems to be maximized. The entrance should be stronger as it currently does not seem
prominent enough. Overall there is good access to outdoor space and amenity space within the
building.

Detail on the building has good articulation and makes an effort to relate to historical context. Motifs
seem to be in-line and consistent with the West-End.

Although the roofline seems to be a bit heavy the flat-aligned roof makes sense. The smaller floor-
plate allows for daylight on the sidewalks.

More thought should be given to Crime Prevention Through Environmental Design (CPTED) to enhance
personal security for building residents with eyes on the lane. Extra windows may help to solve this
issue as well as allow extra light into the building.

Consideration should be given to flipping the core so the corridor could be naturally lit and look up
Davie Street.

Amenity spaces are generous both indoors and outdoors which contribute greatly to livability and
community resilience.

e Applicant’s Response:

The applicant team thanked the panel for their time and comments.

ENGINEERING SERVICES

The recommendations of Engineering Services are contained in the prior-to conditions noted in
Appendix A attached to this report.

CRIME PREVENTION THROUGH ENVIRONMENTAL DESIGN (CPTED)

Recommendations related to CPTED concerns are contained in the prior-to conditions noted in
Appendix A, which is attached to this report.

LANDSCAPE

The recommendations of Landscape are contained in the prior-to conditions noted in Appendix A
attached to this report.
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HOUSING POLICY & PROJECTS / SOCIAL POLICY & PROJECTS / CULTURAL SERVICES

West End Community Plan (WECP)

This site is subject to section 8.1.6 of the WECP which states: “In Area ‘4’ within Lower Davie and
Lower Robson, additional density can be bonused up to 7 FSR for new developments that provide 20% of
floor space as social housing or 100% secured market rental housing.” This requirement is reflected in
the C-5A District Schedule, which states that: “The Director of Planning or the Development Permit
Board may relax the regulations in the C-5A and C-6 districts regarding permitted floor space ratio for
dwelling units in conjunction with other permitted uses, if the Director of Planning or the Development
Permit Board first considers the intent of this schedule, and all applicable Council policies and
guidelines, and:

a) the floor space ratio does not exceed 7.0 in the C-5A district and 8.75 in the C-6 district;

b) the floor space ratio for non-residential uses in the C-6 district must be no less than 1.2; and

c) either a minimum of 20% of the floor area included in the calculation of floor space ratio must

be used for social housing, or all dwelling units must be secured market rental housing.

The existing 12 rental units on the site are proposed to be replaced and augmented with 108 market
rental unit which is a net gain of 96 rental units on the site, and is therefore consistent with the West
End Community Plan and District Schedule. The chart below provides a summary of the changes in
rental and social housing units under the West End Community Plan, including this application.

. Existing New New Social
DIE 2pip ety Rental Rental Housing
DE418742 Min 20% Social
(1171 Jervis St) Hgprered Housing = L 2 &
DE419087 Application in 100% Secured 12 108 0 0
(1188 Bidwell St) process Market Rental
Total 39 108 28 63
Net change in rental +69

The site is also subject to section 8.1.11 of the West End Community Plan which states: “In all cases
where tenants will be displaced as a result of demolition or renovations, a tenant relocation plan as
outlined in the Rate of Change Guidelines will be required.”

Rate of Change Guidelines

The Rate of Change Guidelines are intended to protect and assist tenants and set out the terms of the
required minimum tenant relocation plan. A minimum two months free rent, moving expenses and first
right of refusal for the replacement housing are required as is assistance finding and relocating tenants
to alternate accommodation affordable to them. The applicant has provided a tenant relocation plan
to address the guidelines, however only the Rental Tenancy Act is referenced. Further refinement of
the plan is required to meet the requirements of the Rate of Change Guidelines, as follows (see
recommended conditions 1.5 through 1.8):

e Provision of a Tenant Relocation Plan which includes two months free rent; reimbursement of
receipted moving expenses; and the right of first refusal to move back into the development
upon completion as per Section 2 of the Rate of Change Guidelines;

e Provision of a letter stating the property address and legal description of the site, and
providing the names and mailing addresses of all tenants;

14
City of Vancouver - FOI 2021-433 - Page 306 of 417



1188 BIDWELL STREET (Complete Application) AUGUST 12, 2015
DE419087 - Zone C5-A SDB/JMB/WL/LM

e Provision of a notarized declaration which demonstrates that each tenant has been given
written notice of the intent to redevelop the property; that indicates the number of units
occupied on the date of the notice; includes information on posting of notice regarding the
intent to redevelop as per Section 3 of the Rate of Change Guidelines; and includes copies of a
letter addressed to each tenant summarizing the Tenant Relocation Plan offer and signed as
received by each tenant;

e Provision of a final Tenant Relocation Report which outlines the names of tenants; indicates
the outcome of their search for alternate accommodation; summarizes the total monetary
value given to each tenant (moving costs, rent, any other compensation); and includes a
summary of all communication provided to the tenants prior to issuance of occupancy permit,
with an interim Relocation Report prior to issuance of Building Permit.

e Entering into a Housing Agreement and/or section 219 Covenant securing all 108 residential
units as rental housing for 60 years or the life of the building, whichever is greater and subject
to the following additional conditions in respect of those units:

i) That such units may not be subdivided by deposit of a strata plan;

ii) That none of such units may be separately sold;

iii) That none of such units will be rented for less than one month at a time;

iv) That at initial occupancy, returning Eligible Tenants will be entitled to rent with a
discount of 20% off starting rents

V) That discounted Starting Rents are applicable only to Eligible Tenants who exercise

their right of first refusal and occupy a unit in the new development.

High Density Housing for Families with Children

The proposed 22 storey multiple dwelling includes 23 two bedroom and 4 three bedroom units (a total
of 27 units or 25% of the total number of units) which may be suitable for families with children. A
majority of these are below the 6th floor. This generally meets the requirement of Section 8.2.3 of the
WECP which states: In market housing require that 25% of units in new multi-family developments have
two and three bedroom units for families designed in accordance with the High Density Housing for
Families with Children Guidelines and located on the lower floors.

Consistent with the High Density Housing for Families with Children Guidelines, an indoor amenity room
with accessible washroom is proposed adjacent to and with access to common outdoor amenity space
on level 3. Design development is needed to add a kitchenette and storage closet and to confirm that
the proposed washroom is wheelchair accessible and to add a baby change table to that washroom (see
condition A.1.19).

Also consistent with the guidelines, an outdoor amenity area is proposed adjacent to the level 3 indoor
amenity room with a children’s play area, including play equipment and natural landscape elements,
which provide a range of motor skills developing and creative play opportunities for children.

Also consistent with the guidelines, an additional multi-purpose indoor amenity room with kitchenette
and storage is adjacent to and with access to common outdoor amenity space on level 22. Design
development is needed to confirm that the proposed washroom is wheelchair accessible and to add a
baby change table to that washroom (see condition A.1.20). Also consistent with the guidelines, the
proposed level 22 outdoor amenity area includes an outdoor kitchen and dining amenity area for family
or other social gatherings.

Urban Agriculture

The City of Vancouver Food Policy identifies environmental and social benefits associated with urban
agriculture and seeks to encourage opportunities to grow food in the city. The "Urban Agriculture
Guidelines for the Private Realm” encourage edible landscaping and shared gardening opportunities in
new developments. Consistent with these guidelines the common outdoor area on level 7 includes
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accessible garden plots which can support urban agriculture activity. Design development is needed to
include a compost bins for yard waste and a hose bib location (see condition A.1.11).

PROCESSING CENTRE - BUILDING

This Development Application submission has not been fully reviewed for compliance with the Building
By-law. The applicant is responsible for ensuring that the design of the building meets the Building By-
law requirements. The options available to assure Building By-law compliance at an early stage of
development should be considered by the applicant in consultation with Processing Centre-Building
staff.

To ensure that the project does not conflict in any substantial manner with the Building By-law, the
designer should know and take into account, at the Development Application stage, the Building By-law
requirements which may affect the building design and internal layout. These would generally include:
spatial separation, fire separation, exiting, access for physically disabled persons, type of construction
materials used, fire fighting access and energy utilization requirements.

NOTIFICATION

Two site signs were placed at the site, one facing Bidwell and one facing Davie Street. On June 12,
2015, 1,149 notification postcards were sent to neighbouring property owners advising them of the
application, and offering additional information on the city’s website. The postcard and the
development application materials were posted online at vancouver.ca/devapps. In addition, a public
open house was advertised on the signs, postcard, and online. The Open House was held on the evening
of Monday, June 29, 2015. 53 people attended the open house and 27 written comment forms were
submitted that evening. The Development Permit Board date was also advertised in the summer edition
of the West End Community Plan Implementation Newsletter.

In addition to the comment forms received from the open house, another 11 written responses were
received via email. Of all of the responses, two requested additional information about the rental
tenure; seven expressed support for the project; and 29 were either directly opposed or expressed
significant concerns as outlined below.

Housing Affordability: There was concern that because the units will be secured as market rental
units, the rents will not be affordable. Generally speaking, several comments related to the lack of
affordable housing in the west end.

Staff Response: This development will increase the net supply of secured market rental housing in the
west end by 96 units. A Housing Agreement will also secure rents, at initial occupancy, for returning
Eligible Tenants to be rented with a discount of 20% off starting rents. Refer to comments from the
Housing Policy and Projects group and to upfront conditions 1.5 through 1.8 for further information.

Construction Noise & Other Impacts: There were concerns about construction noise, disruption and
traffic impacts of additional developments in the neighbourhood. Residents in the surrounding
properties want to see construction activities carefully handled to minimize the impacts.

Staff Response: Construction on the site would be subject to Vancouver Noise Control By-Law #65555
which limits construction on private property between 7:30 and 8pm on any weekday that is not a
holiday and between 10am to 8pm on any Saturday that is not a holiday. Use of City streets will be
subject to and reviewed for impacts to the surrounding transportation network by Engineering Services
prior to being granted permits for work on street.
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Access to Light and Views: There were some concerns about how the proposed building would limit
light and overshadow residents living in surrounding buildings.

Staff Response: Staff acknowledge the concern over this change, and note that this application is the
first proposal under the West End Community Plan for Area A of the Lower Davie corridor. In addition,
existing buildings on the north side of Davie Street Area in Area A are very low in scale. Staff also note
that the general massing of occupied space has been shaped within the intended development capacity
of the new West End Plan, and feel that the overall massing avoids view impacts in excess of the Plan.
However, staff recommend reducing the height to meet the C-5A limit, and revising the exterior
decorative and open air elements to reduce view and shadow impacts from these elements (see
Conditions 1.1 and 1.2).

Parking: Comments ranged from there being inadequate parking provided to those who believed the
project provided too many parking spaces and therefore is encouraging more cars to come into the
already congested West End.

Staff Response: The proposal will need to meet condition A.1.3 to satisfy the requirements of the
Parking By-law as they apply in the Downtown area, including the West End.

Street Trees on Bidwell: One respondent requested that the existing trees along the Bidwell frontage
be retained.

Staff Response: The application includes protection of the street trees on both sides.
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DEVELOPMENT PERMIT STAFF COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS

The following is a list of conditions that must also be met prior to issuance of the Development Permit.

A.1

A1.1

A1.2

A1.3

A.1.4

A.1.5

A1.6

A7

A.1.8

A.1.9

Standard Conditions

The applicant can and does obtain a relaxation from the Board of Variance to allow an
occupancy with a frontage in excess of 7.7 m on a floor within 2 m of grade;

provision of Letter “B” which includes confirmation from the owner of the “donor” site that
the agreement has been finalized, and confirming the new “balance” of transferable density
remaining on the donor site;

compliance with Section 4.3.1 - Non-residential Uses - Downtown and 4.3.6 - Residential uses -
Downtown, in accordance with the Parking By-law;

Note to Applicant: A maximum of four non-residential parking spaces is permitted for this
proposal. Also a minimum of 60 parking spaces is required for the residential portion (current
proposal shows 55 spaces with bonuses included);

compliance with Section 6 - Bicycle Parking of the Parking By-law;

Note to Applicant: A total of 135 Class A spaces are required.

written confirmation shall be submitted by the applicant that:

i the acoustical measures will be incorporated into the final design and construction,
based on the consultant's recommendations;

ii. adequate and effective acoustic separation will be provided between the commercial
and residential portions of the building; and

iii. mechanical (ventilators, generators, compactors and exhaust systems) will be designed
and located to minimize the noise impact on the neighbourhood and to comply with
Noise By-law #6555;

confirmation that trellis and rooftop mechanical is open or covered on roof area;

Note to Applicant: If the area is covered, the area will be counted in floor area.

provision of drawings showing Mechanical equipment shall be enclosed behind open topped

screens and set back so as not to be visible from street level or architecturally treated by other

means satisfactory to the Director of Planning;

Note to Applicant: Exposed duct work is not permitted.

update the Statistics drawing on Page A-001;

Note to Applicant: FSR numbers are to show a net FSR.

delete all references to the proposed signage, or notation on plans confirming that: “All

signage is shown for reference only and is not approved under this Development Permit.
Signage is regulated by the Sign By-law and requires separate approvals. The owner assumes
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responsibility to achieve compliance with the Sign By-law and to obtain the required sign
permits.”;

Note to Applicant: The Sign By-law Coordinator should be contacted at 604.871.6714 for
further information.

Standard Landscape Conditions

A.1.10 provision of additional planters and shade trees, as follows;

AA

AA

AA

AA

AA

AA

11

A2

A3

.14

15

.16

e at level 3, provide enlarged planters of a sufficient size (4 foot square planter width) to
accommodate shade trees at the four corners of the child play area;

o at level 3, provide an enlarged planter of a sufficient size (4 foot square planter width) to
accommodate one tree at the north east corner of the private patio;

o at level 7, provide an enlarged planter of a sufficient size (4 foot square planter width) to
accommodate one tree at the north east corner of the private patio.

provision of a compost bin for garden waste and hose bib to the level 7 amenity deck;
provision of enlarged architectural and landscape sections to clearly indicate and dimension
the relationship between the slab, soil volumes, trees and planters on slab to verify that

sufficient soil volumes are provided;

Note to Applicant: sections should be accurate, labeled and dimensioned including all common
areas/ decks. Planting conditions should meet or exceed the latest BCLNA Landscape Standard.

provision of dimensions (inside and outside) of all planters and illustrated on the architectural
and landscape plans;

provision of a partial irrigation plan with notations to indicate hose bib and irrigation
connection locations;

Note to Applicant: See also condition A.1.11. Permanent high efficiency irrigation to be
provided for all planted areas and individual hose bibs for all patios sized at 100 square feet or
greater.

provision of large scale detailed elevations of exterior structures (playground, gates, privacy
screens, railings, urban agriculture potting table/ storage, compost bin);

delete any notes regarding removal of street trees;

Note to Applicant: Per drawings, all trees on Bidwell Street and Davie Street are to be
retained.

Crime Prevention Through Environmental Design (CPTED)

A.1.17 design development to respond to CPTED principles, having particular regards for:

theft in the underground parking;

break and enter;

mail theft; and

mischief and vandalism, such as graffiti.

O nNn oo
—_— — —
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Note to Applicant: Niches that may impede surveillance should be revised to be open to wide
view, or avoided entirely. See Condition 1.6, which is related. Enclosures should be provided
around service areas that face the lane. Lighting should be noted as full cutoff fixtures to
provide glare-free safety illumination.

Housing Policy & Projects / Social Policy & Projects / Cultural Services

A.1.18

A1.19

A.1.20

A.2

A2

A.2.2

A.2.3

provision of a letter stating the property address and legal description of the site, and
providing the names and mailing addresses of all tenants.

design development to the level 3 indoor amenity room to add a kitchenette and storage closet
and to confirm the washroom is wheelchair accessible and to add a baby change table to the
washroom.

design development to the level 22 indoor amenity room to confirm the washroom is
wheelchair accessible and to add a baby change.

Standard Engineering Conditions

make arrangements to the satisfaction of the General Manager of Engineering Services and the
Director of Legal Services for the consolidation of Lot 22 and the West %2 of Lot 23, Block 61,
DL 185, Plan 92 to create a single parcel;

arrangements to the satisfaction of the General Manager of Engineering Services and the
Director of Legal Services is required for an SRW for expanded sidewalk use over the “7’
Hardscape setback” on Davie Street;

Note to Applicant: The SRW agreement must accommodate the underground parking under
the SRW area.

enter into a Shared Vehicle Agreement with the City to secure the provision, operation and
maintenance of 1 Shared Vehicle and the provision and maintenance of 1 Shared Vehicle
Parking Space for use exclusively by such Shared Vehicle, [with such parking spaces to be in
addition to the minimum parking spaces required by the Parking Bylaw], on terms and
conditions satisfactory to the General Manager of Engineering Services and the Director of
Legal Services, including the following:

a) provide 1 Shared Vehicle(s) to the development for a minimum period of 3 years;

b) enter into an agreement with a Shared Vehicle Organization satisfactory to the General
Manager of Engineering Services to secure the operation and maintenance of the Shared
Vehicle;

c) provide and maintain the Shared Vehicle Parking Space for use exclusively by such shared
vehicles;

d) make arrangements to allow members of the Shared Vehicle Organization access to the
Shared Vehicle Parking Space;

e) provide security in the form of a Letter of Credit for $50,000 per Shared Vehicle; and

f) registration of the Shared Vehicle Agreement against the title to the development, with
such priority as the Director of Legal Services may require and including a covenant under
section 219 of the Land Title Act of British Columbia, a statutory right of way, or other
instrument satisfactory to the Director of Legal Services, securing these conditions.

g) provision of a letter of commitment from a car share company indicating their willingness
to supply car share vehicles on the site at building occupancy.
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1188 BIDWELL STREET (Complete Application) APPENDIX A
DE419087 - Zone C5-A Page 4 of 5

A.2.4

A.2.5

A.2.6

A.2.7

A.2.8

Note to Applicant: Shared vehicle spaces are required to be a minimum width of 2.9m.
clarification of garbage pick-up operations.

Note to Applicant: Confirmation that a waste hauler can access and pick up from the location
shown is required. Pick up operations should not require the use of public property for storage,
pick up or return of bins to the storage location;

provision of a separate application to the General Manager of Engineering Services for street
trees and or sidewalk improvements is required.

Note to Applicant: Please submit a copy of the landscape plan directly to Engineering for
review;

provision of benches along Bidwell generally as shown on the drawings complete with concrete
foundations;

Note to Applicant: Final location of benches to be to the satisfaction of the General Manager
of Engineering Services, determined through the landscape review process (see Condition
A.2.5).

a canopy application is required;

Note to Applicant: Canopies must be fully demountable and meet the requirements of the
Building By-law;

compliance with the Parking and Loading Design Supplement to the satisfaction of the General
Manager of Engineering Services;

Note to Applicant: The following items are required to meet provisions of the Parking By-law
and the Parking and Loading Design Supplement:

a) provision of design elevations on both sides of the parking ramp at all breakpoints, both
sides of the loading bay, surface parking and at all entrances.

b) modification of the parking ramp design to improve visibility for two-way vehicle
movement at turns (Section I.B & 1.C).

c) provision of measures to address conflicts between vehicles on the ramp. A parabolic
mirror, signal system or view slot is recommended.

d) consideration of providing corner cuts through the inside radius of all parking ramps where
separation between the parking ramp and the adjacent space exists.

e) modification of the design of the overhead gate to provide a minimum 20’ drive aisle width
through the gate.
Note to Applicant: The overhead gate has an opening width of19’.

f) provide separation of the visitor and residential parking by means of an overhead security
gate.

g) clarify and provide unobstructed access from the residential loading space to the
residential lobby.
Note to Applicant: There appears to be a wall blocking access into the residential lobby
from the main service corridor between the loading spaces and the CRU’s.

h) provide automatic door openers on the doors providing access to the bicycle room(s).

i) clarify and note on submitted drawings the intended route to be used by residents from the
Class A bicycle room to the building exterior.
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1188 BIDWELL STREET (Complete Application) APPENDIX A
DE419087 - Zone C5-A Page 5 of 5

A2.9

A.2.10

Please contact Rob Waite of the Neighbourhood Parking and Transportation Branch at 604-873-
7217 for more information or refer to the Parking and Loading Design Guidelines at the
following link: (http://former.vancouver.ca/engsvcs/parking/admin/developers.htm):

the General Manager of Engineering Services will require all utility services to be underground
for this “conditional” development. All electrical services to the site must be primary with all
electrical plant, which include but not limited to System Vista, Vista switchgear, pad mounted
transformers, LPT and kiosks (including non-BC Hydro kiosks) are to be located on private
property with no reliance on public property for placement of these features. It is presumed
with your consultation so far with B.C. Hydro that an area has been defined within the
development footprint to accommodate such electrical plant. Please confirm that this space
has been allocated and agreement between both parties has been met. At this time there
seems to be no allocation of such plant shown on the detailed Site Plan A100. In addition, there
will be no reliance on secondary voltage from the existing overhead electrical network on the
street right-of-way. Any alterations to the existing overhead/underground utility network to
accommodate this development will require approval by the Utilities Management Branch.

identification on the plans of the location of the Energy Transfer Station (ETS) room;

Note to Applicant: The ETS room should comply with the Neighbourhood Energy Connectivity
Design Guidelines.
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1188 BIDWELL STREET (Complete Application) APPENDIX B
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B.1

B.1.1

B.1.2

B.1.3

B.1.4

B.1.5

B.2

B.2.1

B.2.2

B.2.3

B.2.4

B.2.5

Standard Notes to Applicant

The applicant is advised to note the comments of the Processing Centre-Building, Vancouver
Coastal Health Authority and Fire and Rescue Services Departments contained in the Staff
Committee Report dated August 12, 2015. Further, confirmation that these comments have
been acknowledged and understood, is required to be submitted in writing as part of the
“prior-to” response.

It should be noted that if conditions 1.0 and 2.0 have not been complied with on or before
March 08, 2016 this Development Application shall be deemed to be refused, unless the date
for compliance is first extended by the Director of Planning.

This approval is subject to any change in the Official Development Plan and the Zoning and
Development Bylaw or other regulations affecting the development that occurs before the
permit is issuable. No permit that contravenes the bylaw or regulations can be issued.

Revised drawings will not be accepted unless they fulfill all conditions noted above. Further,
written explanation describing point-by-point how conditions have been met, must accompany
revised drawings. An appointment should be made with the Project Facilitator when the
revised drawings are ready for submission.

A new development application will be required for any significant changes other than those
required by the above-noted conditions.

Conditions of Development Permit:

Detailed design of the building HVAC and mechanical heating and cooling system must be
submitted to and approved by the General Manager of Engineering Services prior to issuance of
building permit.

Confirmation, prior to issuance of building permit, that all heating equipment for all buildings
comprising the development shall be centralized within one common mechanical room at
parkade level, and that a dedicated space not less than 225 ft2 shall be allocated within the
central mechanical room, or other dedicated space connected to the central mechanical room,
to serve as the development’s future Energy Transfer Station (ETS) connecting buildings to the
Neighbourhood Energy System. The dedicated ETS space should be clearly labelled.

Completion of the Confirmation of Neighbourhood Energy Connectivity Requirements letter of
assurance by the design engineer of record, prior to issuance of building permit, certifying that
the mechanical design of all buildings within the development adheres to the Neighbourhood
Energy Connectivity Standards - Design Guidelines.

All approved off-street vehicle parking, loading and unloading spaces, and bicycle parking
spaces shall be provided in accordance with the relevant requirements of the Parking By-law
prior to the issuance of any required occupancy permit or any use or occupancy of the
proposed development not requiring an occupancy permit and thereafter permanently
maintained in good condition.

All landscaping and treatment of the open portions of the site shall be completed in
accordance with the approved drawings prior to the issuance of any required occupancy permit
or any use or occupancy of the proposed development not requiring an occupancy permit and
thereafter permanently maintained in good condition.
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1188 BIDWELL STREET (Complete Application) APPENDIX B
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B.2.6

B.2.7

B.2.8

Any phasing of the development, other than that specifically approved, that results in an
interruption of continuous construction to completion of the development, will require
application to amend the development to determine the interim treatment of the incomplete
portions of the site to ensure that the phased development functions are as set out in the
approved plans, all to the satisfaction of the Director of Planning.

The issuance of this permit does not warrant compliance with the relevant provisions of the
Provincial Health and Community Care and Assisted Living Acts. The owner is responsible for
obtaining any approvals required under the Health Acts. For more information on required
approvals and how to obtain these, please contact Vancouver Coastal Health at 604-675-3800
or visit their offices located on the 12™ floor of 601 West Broadway. Should compliance with
the health Acts necessitate changes to this permit and/or approved plans, the owner is
responsible for obtaining approval for the changes prior to commencement of any work under
this permit. Additional fees may be required to change the plans.

This site is affected by a Development Cost Levy By-law and levies will be required to be
paid prior to issuance of Building Permits.
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Sent from my iPhone
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D 604 694 8896 F 604 683 6719
RELIANCEPROPERTIES.CA
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"Ellis, Sarah" <Sarah.Ellis@vancouver.ca>

"Renter Office" <RenterOffice@vancouver.ca>

"Naundorf, Daniel" <daniel.naundorf@vancouver.ca>

"Gillman, Andrea" <Andrea.Gillman@vancouver.ca>

11/14/2019 6:17:34 PM
RE: 1188 Bidwell - DE419087

Hi David - | am probably not the right person for this particular case; | recall | was involved with the
TRP at the end when the situation with the final 2 tenants escalated and required additional support
and involvement from Abi and Andrea, but I didn't work on the TRP for the other tenants. That said |
am happy to help with creating responses to any policy issues. Copying Andrea so she is in the loop.

Sarah

From: Renter Office

Sent: Thursday, November 14, 2019 5:24 PM

To: Naundorf, Daniel
Cc: Ellis, Sarah
Subject: RE: 1188 Bidwell - DE419087

Hi Daniel,

Thanks for pulling together all of that information.

Hi Sarah,

Would you be able to comment on this case and/or reach out to the tenants to advise them of next steps?
| feel asif you could speak to it better than | could in case they have additional questions.

Thanks,
David

From: Naundorf, Daniel

Sent: Thursday, November 14, 2019 2:45 PM
To: Renter Office

Cc: HEllis, Sarah

Subject: FW: 1188 Bidwell - DE419087
Importance: High

Found the TRP

Filed in VanDocs under their DE number ...

From page 6 of the TRP

Right of first refusal to
move back into an
equivalent/similar unit in
the New Building, upon
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From: LeBreton, Wendy [mailto:Wendy.L ebreton@vancouver.ca)

Sent: Tuesday, September 6, 2016 10:47 AM

To: 'Juan G. Pereira

Cc: Black, Sailen; "Jon Stovell’; 'Lynn Luong'’; Naundorf, Daniel; Adrian Politano (APolitano@dialogdesign.ca)
Subject: RE: 1188 Bidwell - DE419087

Juan,

Y ou mentioned below that you have all the materials required for conditions 1.6,7,8,18. Can you please
email to me asap? | will respond with staff comments on the prior-to drawings.

Cheers,
Wendy

Wendy LeBreton MES | Project Facilitator |1 | City of Vancouver
t]604.871.6796 e | wendy.lebreton @ vancouver.ca

From: LeBreton, Wendy

Sent: Monday, August 15, 2016 12:11 PV

To: 'Juan G. Pereira

Cc: Black, Sailen; Jon Stovell; Lynn Luong; Naundorf, Daniel
Subject: RE: 1188 Bidwell - DE419087

Hi Juan,

Once you have submitted your outstanding prior-to response materials, | will circulate to the appropriate
staff. These items will not be cleared until | receive confirmation from staff.

Similarly, | have collected comments and outstanding conditions from staff on the drawings that you
submitted back in February (including communication w/ Sailen). Once | receive the outstanding prior-
to response materials noted above, | will send you staff comments on the drawings.

To answer your question: yes, City Law dept has received instructions to draft legal agreements.

Heritage requirement is the same as al other prior-to conditions: this must be cleared before the DP can
be issued.

Chesrs,
Wendy

Wendy LeBreton MES | Project Facilitator |1 | City of Vancouver
t|604.871.6796 e | wendy.lebreton @ vancouver.ca

From: Juan G. Pereira[mailto:juanp@relianceproperties.cal
Sent: Thursday, August 11, 2016 10:17 AM

To: LeBreton, Wendy

Cc: Black, Sailen; Jon Stovell; Lynn Luong
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feedback from Tenants.

- The City should then provide imminent release of the TRP for this project as to
clear occupancy path.

 You have confirmed that no additional information will be required besides the
report sheet as we have already provided wide range of information backing up
this process for your Department as a record.

Please confirm,

Thanks,

JUAN G. PEREIRA PROJECT MANAGER

From: Gillman, Andrea [mailto:Andrea.Gillman@vancouver.ca]

Sent: Thursday, December 19, 2019 4:26 PM

To: Juan Pereira

Cc: Jonathan Lim; Naundorf, Daniel; Lynn Luong; Jon Stovell; Bond, Abigalil
Subject: RE: 1188 Bidwell - meeting

Thanks for your thoughts on this Juan,

I'll give you a call to discuss further, as I've received your voice mail and have a few
follow up questions based on the repeated questions coming in from the tenants,
beyond the extension of the deadline as previously noted by Daniel. | believe we have
now heard from most of the potential returning tenants either by phone or email at this
point, so they would all be aware of the City’s position and the City’s desire to see a
stable tenancy option provided.

Andrea

From: Juan Pereira [mailto:juanp@relianceproperties.ca]
Sent: Thursday, December 19, 2019 4:32 PM

To: 'Naundorf, Daniel’; 'Gillman, Andrea’

Cc: Jonathan Lim; Lynn Luong; Jon Stovell; 'Bond, Abigail’
Subject: RE: 1188 Bidwell - meeting

Importance: High

Daniel,

On the other hand we are getting concerned about clearing our permit for occupancy, so
looking at the big picture here if no holds are set from Housing Department based on our
outlined advanced action we could relax another week up to Monday January 13th, 2020.
Hardcopy Letters were already circulated, we could provide an extension via email
distribution.

Going back in time we have been setting deadlines after deadlines and we trust had
advanced efficient actions while waiting indefinitely for others to respond.

For the record October 18th sets our formal distribution for First Right of Refusal
previously outlined as an intent communication letter circulated in September 15t, 2019.
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Thanks,

JUAN G. PEREIRA PROJECT MANAGER

From: Naundorf, Daniel [mailto:daniel.naundorf@vancouver.ca]
Sent: Thursday, December 19, 2019 3:10 PM

To: Juan Pereira; Gillman, Andrea

Cc: Jonathan Lim; Lynn Luong; Jon Stovell; Bond, Abigail
Subject: RE: 1188 Bidwell - meeting

We are getting calls from tenants who are very concerned about the limited time they
have to consider/ evaluate the additional offer, given the timing of the holidays between
now and January 6

The tenants are concerned that Jan 6 is insufficient time for them to evaluate the offer
being made at this busy time of year.

Extending this deadline would be helpful to them.

From: Juan Pereira [mailto:juanp@relianceproperties.ca|
Sent: Thursday, December 19, 2019 12:23 PM

To: Gillman, Andrea

Cc: Jonathan Lim; Naundorf, Daniel; Lynn Luong; Jon Stovell; Bond, Abigail
Subject: RE: 1188 Bidwell - meeting

Importance: High

Andrea,
We are circulating letters to Tenants now.

Certainly as expressed on our conference call, we feel this whole process requires proper
notification from CoV to Tenants.

Constantly obligations/requirements by the Developer are outlined, however this is a
City’s initiative and having Tenants properly informed is part of the Public commitment
(e.g. City’s hosted Open Houses to clearly outline City’s policies around a project).
Instead of a passive/reactive position, Tenants should be outlined of the Developer’s
obligations at front by the City and we are positive this will be a lot more efficient and
successful for all parties.

While City’s position is ambiguous and non-consistent with accepted and legally bound
TRP via Housing Agreement, there is this figure around of the “evil Developer” trying to
take advantage of the situation; it is certainly frustrating when within our company’s
vision we are far beyond responding, offering options and superseding obligations; the
response comes back in oppositive direction having Tenants (City’s ultimate objective)
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frustrated, anxious and certainly armed trying to take advantage of the situation.

All of this without prejudice feeling there is room for improvement as to ensure efficient
and successful processes that ultimate are in line of creating more housing options,
mutual interest of all parties.

Thanks,

JUAN G. PEREIRA PROJECT MANAGER

305 - 111 WATER STREET
VANCOUVER, BC CANADA V6B 1A7
D 604 694 8680 F 604 683 6719
RELIANCEPROPERTIES.CA

E & O E: All information contained herein is from sources we deem reliable; however, no guarantee or responsibility is assumed thereof, and it shall
not form any part of future contracts. Properties are submitted subject to errors and omissions and all information should be carefully verified. All
measurements quoted herein are approximate.

From: Gillman, Andrea [mailto:Andrea.Gillman@vancouver.ca]

Sent: Wednesday, December 18, 2019 5:14 PM

To: Juan Pereira

Cc: Jonathan Lim; Naundorf, Daniel; Lynn Luong; Jon Stovell; Bond, Abigail
Subject: RE: 1188 Bidwell - meeting

Hi Juan,

We heard from a few of the tenants several weeks ago when they were concerned with
the offer put forward to them and questioned if this met the Right of First Refusal as they
understood it. Several tenants reached out to Daniel directly at this time.

The City will continue to communicate with tenants as they reach out to us, but do not
intend to send a blanket letter to the tenants. | do believe this now gives the tenants a
range of options and am confident they will reach out to us with any questions or
concerns on their part after receiving the letter. We can reiterate to tenants at this time
that this additional offer was the result of discussions between the City and Reliance to
fulfil the terms of the TRP.

Thanks.

Andrea

From: Juan Pereira [mailto:juanp@relianceproperties.ca]
Sent: Wednesday, December 18, 2019 3:54 PM

To: Gillman, Andrea
Cc: Jonathan Lim; Naundorf, Daniel; Lynn Luong; Jon Stovell; Bond, Abigail
Subject: RE: 1188 Bidwell - meeting

Andrea,
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Appreciate your prompt feedback.

Just wondering if CoV is providing further clarification to the Tenants. As discussed there
is no point on us trying to convince Tenants of something that is agreeable by the City if
it doesn’t come directly from the City. We had outlined in our conference call and in
further correspondence this need and conscious of our committed actions and beyond
approved TRP offers, the City has important role and action to guarantee success of the
process. Please clarify/confirm what your position is and what further/completed actions
informing Tenants are in place.

Meantime we will complete the report and distribute once we hear back from Tenants
on their final right of first refusal actions along with correspondence as outlined on your
form.

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
Sent: Wednesday, December 18, 2019 3:37 PM

To: Juan Pereira
Cc: Jonathan Lim; Naundorf, Daniel; Lynn Luong; Jon Stovell; Bond, Abigail
Subject: RE: 1188 Bidwell - meeting

Thanks Juan,

This looks to be in alignment with what we’ve discussed. As for the final Tenant
Relocation Report we will need you to complete the form found here.
https://vancouver.ca/files/cov/tenant-relocation-report-2016.dot

| believe we have the binder related to the initial tenant relocation which provides a
detailed account of all communication between Reliance staff and tenants during the
time.

Andrea

From: Juan Pereira [mailto:juanp@relianceproperties.ca]

Sent: Wednesday, December 18, 2019 2:31 PM

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
Thanks for your provided feedback.

Attached a zip file with related letters for Tenants that have expressed intent to take the
right of first refusal.

We intent to circulate these promptly and we are requesting response by January 6th,
2020 at 5:00pm.

Let us know if you have any further questions/comments.

| trust you can advance any related process in order to clear the final Tenant Relocation
Plan for this project; let me know what you expect to see in the report apart from as
circulated and we can compile and submit to you.

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

Sent: Monday, December 16, 2019 12:34 PM

To: Juan Pereira

Cc: Jonathan Lim; Naundorf, Daniel; Lynn Luong; Jon Stovell; Bond, Abigail
Subject: RE: 1188 Bidwell - meeting

Hi Juan,

Thanks for providing the detailed summary below. | have read through all the
documentation provided and we appreciate that Reliance has put something forward
that will provide tenants with the option of a stable tenancy, rather than just a 2 year
term.

If you are now able to communicate out these three options to the tenants who have

indicated they wish to return to 1188 Bidwell, as you note below, it will be up to the
individual tenants to determine how they wish to proceed. This should satisfy the intent
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be able to get a down payment to get into owning a suite).

None of the proposed options contemplate the fact that a Tenant desires to stay at
current relocated suite with current agreement under current discounted rent in
perpetuity. Even the RTA has been adjusted after our TRP was approved (restricting fixed
lease terms) there is a strong case that our offer is limited to the time of construction of
the new building and it is part of their current lease agreement. If Tenant decides to
refuse to offered A, B or C options and remain in the suite without action, they will
receive a Notice to vacate their current suite; There are not only obligations on the TRP
assigned to the Developer and the limitations to the offer are clear since day one. We
will understand this position as the Tenant trying to take advantage of the situation and
the provided Good Faith action by the Developer on this process and will submit an
application for a Dispute Resolution to the Residential Tenancy Branch and process any
Tenant’s claim through Arbitration. We are positive that we have a fully supported case
and certainly would like to safe both parties to go through the tortuous process and
achieve a negative outcome after all effort made in this TRP.

In addition, above action by Tenant provides a full disincentive on Developers offering
relocation on owned buildings which also is contrary to TRP aspirations and sets a
negative precedent for future projects.

As previously stated, it is not in our obligation to convince Tenants that our actions are
consistent and go beyond the TRP, there is an important role to the City to provide the
confidence to the Tenants on the fairness of the process. We trust City of Vancouver can
do that in light of obtaining a successful TRP that is in all parties interest.

We appreciate your prompt feedback as we will be imminently communicating these
options to the Tenants and trust you can comment before we proceed.

Let me know if any questions or if you want to meet as it is ideally preferred,

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
Sent: Wednesday, December 11, 2019 3:00 PM

To: Juan Pereira

Cc: Jonathan Lim; Naundorf, Daniel; Lynn Luong
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Subject: RE: 1188 Bidwell - meeting

Thanks Juan,

| am just heading into meetings now, but appreciate you giving some further thought to
what additional options you can provide to the tenants. Further to the 20% discount
option, as per current City policy, | want to confirm that this would be offered in
perpetuity for the duration of the tenancy, subject to increases as per the RTA. As you
know from our conversation on Monday, creating stable tenancies is critical to fulfilling
the offer of right of first refusal. Can you also give us an idea of what the current market
rents are for the units being held for these folks?

Andrea

From: Juan Pereira [mailto:juanp@relianceproperties.ca]
Sent: Wednesday, December 11, 2019 2:34 PM

To: Gillman, Andrea

Cc: Jonathan Lim; Naundorf, Daniel; Lynn Luong
Subject: RE: 1188 Bidwell - meeting
Importance: High

Andrea,
Just left a VM to you.

We have the figures with market rents per Tenant in current building locations to
compare with our TRP scenario.

From accepted TRP for this project and further to our conversation we will be providing
two additional options to the Tenants:
- Extended benefit of 2 years discounted rent from Market rent at current locations
where the Market rents are lower or equivalent to 1188 (with suites larger than
1188).
 Match TRP current policies where Tenants have the right of first refusal to move
back into 1188 Bidwell with 20% discount off starting market rent.

We want to present these options on the case by case basis and the best would be to
have a Face to Face.

Can you accommodate a meeting this afternoon around 4:00pm?
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
Asdiscussed in our conversation:

- Hardcopies of the |etters for RFR have been already distributed to Tenants with
deadline January 6th, 2020

- Wewill distribute tomorrow viaemail digital copies of the letters and outline and
additional extension up to January 13th, 2020 5:00pm.

- We will distribute back to you the Draft of the Tenant Relocation Report with any
pending information (confirmation by Tenants on their RFR) on January 6th, 2020
for your review/comments.

- Meantime during that week City will provide us with any comments on this draft
report and we will submit final on January 13th or day after once we have full
feedback from Tenants.

- The City should then provide imminent release of the TRP for this project asto
clear occupancy path.

- You have confirmed that no additional information will be required besides the

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

Sent: Thursday, December 19, 2019 4.26 PM

To: Juan Pereira

Cc: Jonathan Lim; Naundorf, Daniel; Lynn Luong; Jon Stovell; Bond, Abigail
Subject: RE: 1188 Bidwell - meeting

Thanks for your thoughts on this Juan,

I Il giveyou acall to discuss further, as| ve received your voice mail and have afew
follow up questions based on the repeated questions coming in from the tenants, beyond
the extension of the deadline as previously noted by Daniel. | believe we have now heard
from most of the potential returning tenants either by phone or email at this point, so they
would all be aware of the City s position and the City s desire to see a stable tenancy
option provided.

Andrea

From: Juan Pereira[mailto:juanp@relianceproperties.cal
Sent: Thursday, December 19, 2019 4:32 PV

To: 'Naundorf, Danidl"; ‘Gillman, Andrea

Cc: Jonathan Lim; Lynn Luong; Jon Stovell; 'Bond, Abigail'
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Subject: RE: 1188 Bidwell - meeting
Importance: High

Danidl,

On the other hand we are getting concerned about clearing our permit for occupancy, so
looking at the big picture hereif no holds are set from Housing Department based on our
outlined advanced action we could relax another week up to Monday January 13th, 2020.
Hardcopy L etters were already circulated, we could provide an extension via email
distribution.

Going back in time we have been setting deadlines after deadlines and we trust had
advanced efficient actions while waiting indefinitely for othersto respond.

For the record October 18t sets our formal distribution for First Right of Refusal
previously outlined as an intent communication letter circulated in September 1, 2019.

Thanks,

JUAN G. PEREIRA PROJECT MANAGER

From: Naundorf, Daniel [mailto:daniel.naundorf @vancouver.cal
Sent: Thursday, December 19, 2019 3:10 PM

To: Juan Pereira; Gillman, Andrea

Cc: Jonathan Lim; Lynn Luong; Jon Stovell; Bond, Abigail
Subject: RE: 1188 Bidwell - meeting

We are getting calls from tenants who are very concerned about the limited time they have
to consider/ evaluate the additional offer, given the timing of the holidays between now
and January 6

The tenants are concerned that Jan 6 isinsufficient time for them to evaluate the offer
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

Constantly obligations/requirements by the Devel oper are outlined, however thisisa
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City sinitiative and having Tenants properly informed is part of the Public commitment
(e.g. City s hosted Open Houses to clearly outline City s policies around a project).
Instead of a passive/reactive position, Tenants should be outlined of the Developer s
obligations at front by the City and we are positive thiswill be alot more efficient and
successful for al parties.

While City s position is ambiguous and non-consi stent with accepted and legally bound
TRP viaHousing Agreement, thereis this figure around of the evil Developer trying to
take advantage of the situation; it is certainly frustrating when within our company s
vision we are far beyond responding, offering options and superseding obligations; the
response comes back in oppositive direction having Tenants (City s ultimate objective)
frustrated, anxious and certainly armed trying to take advantage of the situation.

All of thiswithout prejudice feeling there is room for improvement as to ensure efficient
and successful processes that ultimate are in line of creating more housing options, mutual
interest of all parties.

Thanks,

JUAN G. PEREIRA PROJECT MANAGER

305- 111 WATER STREET
VANCOUVER, BC CANADA V6B 1A7
D 604 694 8680 F 604 683 6719
RELIANCEPROPERTIES.CA

E & O E: All information contained herein is from sources we deem reliable; however, no guarantee or responsibility is assumed thereof, and it shall not form any
part of future contracts Properties are submitted subject to errors and omissions and all information should be carefully verified All measurements quoted herein are
approximate

From: Gillman, Andrea[mailto:Andrea.Gillman@vancouver.cal

Sent: Wednesday, December 18, 2019 5:14 PVI

To: Juan Pereira

Cc: Jonathan Lim; Naundorf, Daniel; Lynn Luong; Jon Stovell; Bond, Abigail
Subject: RE: 1188 Bidwell - meeting

Hi Juan,

We heard from afew of the tenants several weeks ago when they were concerned with the
offer put forward to them and questioned if this met the Right of First Refusal as they
understood it. Several tenants reached out to Daniel directly at thistime.

The City will continue to communicate with tenants as they reach out to us, but do not
intend to send a blanket letter to the tenants. | do believe this now gives the tenants a
range of options and am confident they will reach out to us with any questions or concerns
on their part after receiving the letter. We can reiterate to tenants at thistime that this
additional offer was the result of discussions between the City and Reliance to fulfil the
terms of the TRP.

Thanks.

Andrea
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From: Juan Pereira[mailto:juanp@relianceproperties.cal

Sent: Wednesday, December 18, 2019 3:54 PVI

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
isno point on ustrying to convince Tenants of something that is agreeable by the City if it
doesn t come directly from the City. We had outlined in our conference call and in further
correspondence this need and conscious of our committed actions and beyond approved
TRP offers, the City hasimportant role and action to guarantee success of the process.
Please clarify/confirm what your position is and what further/completed actions informing
Tenants are in place.

Meantime we will complete the report and distribute once we hear back from Tenants on
their final right of first refusal actions along with correspondence as outlined on your
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

Thislooks to be in alignment with what we ve discussed. Asfor the final Tenant
Relocation Report we will need you to compl ete the form found here.
https.//vancouver.calfiles/cov/tenant-rel ocation-report-2016.dot

| believe we have the binder related to theinitial tenant relocation which provides a
detailed account of all communication between Reliance staff and tenants during the time.
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Andrea

From: Juan Pereira[mailto:juanp@relianceproperties.cal

Sent: Wednesday, December 18, 2019 2:31 PVI

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

We intent to circulate these promptly and we are requesting response by January 6th, 2020
at 5:00pm.

Let us know if you have any further questions/comments.

| trust you can advance any related processin order to clear the final Tenant Relocation
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

Sent: Monday, December 16, 2019 12:34 PV

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
documentation provided and we appreciate that Reliance has put something forward that
will provide tenants with the option of a stable tenancy, rather than just a2 year term.

If you are now able to communicate out these three options to the tenants who have
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the RTA has been adjusted after our TRP was approved (restricting fixed |ease terms)
there is a strong case that our offer islimited to the time of construction of the new
building and it is part of their current lease agreement. If Tenant decides to refuse to
offered A, B or C options and remain in the suite without action, they will receive a
Notice to vacate their current suite; There are not only obligations on the TRP assigned to
the Developer and the limitations to the offer are clear since day one. We will understand
this position as the Tenant trying to take advantage of the situation and the provided Good
Faith action by the Developer on this process and will submit an application for a Dispute
Resolution to the Residential Tenancy Branch and process any Tenant s claim through
Arbitration. We are positive that we have afully supported case and certainly would like
to safe both parties to go through the tortuous process and achieve a negative outcome
after all effort made in this TRP.

In addition, above action by Tenant provides afull disincentive on Developers offering
relocation on owned buildings which also is contrary to TRP aspirations and sets a
negative precedent for future projects.

As previously stated, it isnot in our obligation to convince Tenants that our actions are
consistent and go beyond the TRP, there is an important role to the City to provide the
confidence to the Tenants on the fairness of the process. We trust City of Vancouver can
do that in light of obtaining a successful TRP that isin all parties interest.

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
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perpetuity for the duration of the tenancy, subject to increases as per the RTA. Asyou
know from our conversation on Monday, creating stable tenanciesis critical to fulfilling
the offer of right of first refusal. Can you also give us an idea of what the current market
rents are for the units being held for these folks?

Andrea

From: Juan Pereira [mailto:juanp@relianceproperties.cal
Sent: Wednesday, December 11, 2019 2:34 PV

To: Gillman, Andrea

Cc: Jonathan Lim; Naundorf, Daniel; Lynn Luong
Subject: RE: 1188 Bidwell - meeting

Importance: High

Andrea,
Just left aVM to you.

We have the figures with market rents per Tenant in current building locations to compare
with our TRP scenario.

From accepted TRP for this project and further to our conversation we will be providing
two additional optionsto the Tenants:
- Extended benefit of 2 years discounted rent from Market rent at current locations
where the Market rents are lower or equivalent to 1188 (with suites larger than
1188).
- Match TRP current policies where Tenants have the right of first refusal to move
back into 1188 Bidwell with 20% discount off starting market rent.

We want to present these options on the case by case basis and the best would be to have a
Face to Face.

Can you accommodate a meeting this afternoon around 4:00pm?
Please confirm,

Thanks,

JUAN G. PEREIRA PROJECT MANAGER

From: Gillman, Andrea[mailto:Andrea.Gillman@vancouver.cal

Sent: Monday, December 9, 2019 3:35 PM

To: Juan Pereira

Cc: Jonathan Lim; Jon Stovell; Naundorf, Daniel; Lynn Luong; gueeniel @relianceproperties.ca
Bond, Abigall

Subject: Re: 1188 Bidwell conference call

Apologies we are dialing back in after we lost the call.
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From: "Jonathan Lim" <JonathanL@relianceproperties.ca>
To: "Gillman, Andrea" <Andrea.Gillman@yvancouver.ca>
CC: "Naundorf, Daniel" <daniel.naundorf@vancouver.ca>
"Lynn Luong" <lynnl@relianceproperties.ca>
"Juan Pereira" <juanp@relianceproperties.ca>
"Jon Stovell" <jons@relianceproperties.ca>
Date: 12/9/2019 12:52:37 PM
Subject: RE: 1188 Bidwell Street - First Right of Refusal for former tenants

Hi Andrea,

We can definitely accommodate a call — | will get back to you with some timeslots shortly.
Prior to that, can you please outline why you don’t believe our intentions align with your
understanding of the approved TRP with respect to the right of first refusal?

Thank you,

JONATHAN LIM PROJECT COORDINATOR

305 - 111 WATER STREET
VANCOUVER, BC CANADA V6B 1A7
D 604 616 5450 F 604 683 6719
RELIANCEPROPERTIES.CA

E. & O. E.: All information contained herein is from sources we deem reliable; however, no guarantee or responsibility is
assumed thereof, and it shall not form any part of future contracts. Properties are submitted subject to errors and omissions
and all information should be carefully verified. All measurements quoted herein are approximate.

From: Gillman, Andrea <Andrea.Gillman@vancouver.ca>

Sent: December 9, 2019 12:23 PM

To: Jonathan Lim <JonathanlL@relianceproperties.ca>

Cc: Naundorf, Daniel <daniel.naundorf@vancouver.ca>; Lynn Luong <lynnl@relianceproperties.ca>;
Juan Pereira <juanp@relianceproperties.ca>; Jon Stovell <jons@relianceproperties.ca>

Subject: RE: 1188 Bidwell Street - First Right of Refusal for former tenants

Hi Jonathan,

Thank you for sharing all the documentation. | was away from the office on Friday but will review
this afternoon. I’'m wondering if you may have time for a call later today or tomorrow as it might be
best to walk through your intentions here as | don’t believe they align with our understanding of the
approved TRP with respect to right of first refusal.

Andrea

From: Jonathan Lim [mailto:JonathanL@relianceproperties.ca]
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Please confirm,

Thanks,

<image001.png>

JUAN G. PEREIRA PROJECT MANAGER

305-111 WATER STREET
VANCOUVER, BC CANADA V6B 1A7
D 604 694 8680 F 604 683 6719
RELIANCEPROPERTIES.CA

E & O E: All information contained herein is from sources we deem reliable; however, no
guarantee or responsibility is assumed thereof, and it shall not form any part of future
contracts. Properties are submitted subject to errors and omissions and all information
should be carefully verified. All measurements quoted herein are approximate.

From: Gillman, Andrea
[mailto:Andrea.Gillman@vancouver.ca]

Sent: Monday, November 18, 2019 6:21 PM
To: juanp@relianceproperties.ca

Cc: Naundorf, Daniel

Subject: RE: 1188 Bidwell Street - First Right of
Refusal for former tenants

Hi Juan,

Thanks for taking our call this afternoon and
providing us with an update on the status of the
Right of First Refusal Offer for your tenants. As
you know we have heard from a number of
former tenants at 1188 Bidwell this week.

Some tenants believe the discounted rent
promised is not being reflected in the offer of
Right of First Refusal, as they have scouted the
other units in the building and the asking rents
on these units are not 20% above what is being
offered to them. We note that the Tenant
Relocation Plan and Housing Agreement secured
an offer off the market rents for a period of 2
years (after which allowable RTA increases

apply).

We have also heard that tenants face rent
increases in the interim Reliance owned units
they are renting that far exceed those allowable
under the RTA annual increase. We want to
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ensure you are aware of recent changes to the
RTA, including the prohibition on fixed-term
tenancies and the allowable annual increases, as
the increases described to us would not be legal
under the Act.

We understand from our call that former
tenants have had 30 days to review the offer,
and that they were given a deadline of 5pm
today to respond. As we have not yet seen a
copy of the offer letter, we would ask you to
kindly extend the offer another few days or a
week to give the tenants a bit more breathing
room, and communicate out to the tenants that
you are in discussion with the City to review the
terms of the offer.

Please note that an Occupancy Hold for the
entire building is in place as per the Housing
Agreement Registered on title and requires the
General Manager of Arts, Culture, and
Community Services to be satisfied with the
Tenant Relocation Plan.

We look forward to reviewing a copy of the offer
letter as discussed and hope that this aligns with
the right of first refusal outlined in the
Registered Housing Agreement, the Tenant
Relocation Plan and with the Rental Tenancy Act.

Please don’t hesitate to reach out to Daniel or |
with any questions.

Thanks!

Andrea

Andrea Gillman mcip, RPP
Senior Housing Planner
Affordable Housing Programs
City of Vancouver

T: 604-873-7437
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From: "Singh, Sandra" <Sandra.Singh@vancouver.ca>
To: "Jon Stovell" <jons@relianceproperties.ca>
CC: "Gillman, Andrea" <Andrea.Gillman@yvancouver.ca>
"Lynn Luong" <lynnl@relianceproperties.ca>
Date: 2/14/2020 6:20:03 PM
Subject: RE: Re: Final agreement draft

Thank you Jon,
We will log this as our agreement with you and start the roll out of the communications.
Sandra

From: Jon Stovell [mailto:jons@relianceproperties.ca]
Sent: Friday, February 14, 2020 6:18 PM

To: Singh, Sandra

Cc: Gillman, Andrea; Lynn Luong

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Re: Final agreement draft

Hi Sandra
We find the wording acceptable.
We will prepare written offers for Tuesday.

We will do our best to get any Tenants wishing to see 1847
Barclay as soon as possible.

They can email me and | will push it on to the team.

Lynn please advise the Bidwell leasing team that these tenants
may show up at the Sales Suite for tours.

Thank you.
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